
Gunning's Delight Farm 
AL-Vl-A-155 

In 1882 J.B. Gunning purchased a house and lot near 
Cresaptown. The frame house, which had been the property 
of the Darrow and Brady families, was probably built during 
the mid-nineteenth century. On the lot Gunning built a 
distillery and produced rye whiskey, known as "Gunnings 
Delight". He also operated a saloon which was housed in 
an addition to his residence. Before 1900 he purchased 
more than 1,000 acres of farms surrounding his house to 
create the "Gunnings Delight" Farm. By 1903 Gunning got 
out of the distillery business and turned to agriculture 
and the raising of livestock, which he was very sucessful 
at doing. • 

The two story frame house is the only original building 
remaining on the farm. Although the principle facade is in 
relatively original condition a large number of variously 
shaped additions obscure the remainder of the building. 
Only the foundation of the frame distillery remains. Other 
buildings including an aging house, barns, and two other dwellings 
have been removed. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This building originally consisted of a two story, three bays 
wide rectangular frame structure with gennan siding. It rests on 
a low stone foundation of random rubble with a plain water table. 
The gable flank roof is covered with ribbed tin on the northwest. 
Eaves consist of a cornice, soffit, and bed mould. An outside end 
chimney of glazed white brick has a corbeled cap. Replaced pediment­
ed windows are wide one over one lights with wooden lugsills. The 
main entrance, 1n the center of the northwestern facade, includes 
sidelights of four lights and one panel each. The door is of two 
panels and eight lights. A porch on the northwest has a hipped 
roof covered with ribbed tin supported by square wooden posts. 

Alterations of the original building include the addition 
of a central gable with a pedimented entrance and a circular ventilator. 
The rear of the gabled roof was elevated and extended. The porch was 
extended onto the northeastern facade. 

Additions include an enclosed porch on the northeast with a 
hip roofed rectangular addition partially supported by wooden posts 
on the second floor. A cross gabled addition, a tavern, abuts the 
original on the southwest and extends towards the southeast. Two 
flat roofed additions of two stories abut this addition on the 
northeast and southwest, the one on the southwest has a parapet 
front. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

J.B. Gunning was born in Eckhart Mines in 1854. Like many young 
men of the George's Creek mining region his education ended early when 
he went to work in the mines at an early age. At the age of 19 he 
became the "weighmaster" at the Consolidation Coal Company's Hoffman 
mines and later was a brakeman on the Cumberland and Pennsylvania 
Railroad. In 1879 he moved to Wilmington, Delaware to open a retail 
grocery business. (1) 

In 1882 Gunning returned to Allegany County and purchased a 
house and lot near Cresaptown, The frame house, which had been the 
property of the Darrow and Brady families, was probably built during 
the mid-nineteenth century. (2) On the small tract of land Gunning 
built a distillery and produced rye whiskey.(3) This venture into 
distilling may have been encouraged by his father-in-law, John J. Hughes, 
who operated "a large distilling business at Bedford", Pennsylvania. (4) 
Thomas and Williams, Gunnings biographers, described the sucess of his 
business: 

His initial venture was a modest one, as his capital 
was not great, but he worked industriously, producing 
an excellent grade of goods, and eventually built up 
a large and lucrative business. His special brand of 
goods, known as 11 Gunnings Delight" , became famed all 
over this section of the country, and his straight­
forward methods and integrity in alltransactions assisted 
in building up his trade and making his name an honored 
one in business circles. (5) 

Assessments of Gunning's property made between 1893 and 1905 
show that a steadily increasing number of barrels of distilled 
spirits were produced and stored in an aging house. At one time 
as many as 310 barrels of whiskey were assessed. (6) Gunning also 
operated a saloo~which was housed in an addition to his residence. (7) 

(cont.) 
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(Significance cont.) 

By 1903 Gunning 11 disposed of his interest 11 in the distillery and 
11 devoted his abilities to agriculture and livestock raising 11

• (8) Before 
the turn of the century he purchased more than 1000 acres of the surrounding 
farms to create the 11 Gunning 1 s Delight 11 farm. (9) He managed his fann in an 
11 enterprising and progressive manner11 and was willing to 11 experiment with 
innovations. 11 (10) Beginning with 150 Angora goats to clean the farm of 
undergrowth he built a herd of hundreds of cattle, sheep, and hogs fed on 
wheat, corn, hay, and grass produced on the farm.(11) 

The efficency and success of his operation attracted attention, he 
served at different times as the Director of the Cumberland Fair Association 
and was appointed a member of the Maryland Livestock Sanitary Corrmission. 
In the latter capacity Gunning 11 Assisted greatly in formulating plans for 
a more closely supervised livestock inspection 11 and encouraged 22 local 
dairymen to construct sanitary barns. (12) 

Gunning's political activity began in 1900 when he was elected county 
co1TD11issioner. During the first of two terms as commissioners he was 
involved in early attempts to create a powerful State Roads Ccmmission. 
Later in 1903, Gunning was 11 instrumental in having the first mile 
of macadam road laid in Maryland under United States Government supervision 11

, 

on the National Road between Cumberland and Frostburg. In 1907 he was 
defeated in an attempt to be elected to the state legislature. (13) 

The two story frame house is the only original building remaining 
on the farm. Although the principle facade is in relatively original 
condition a large number of variously shaped additions obscure the 
remainder of the building. Only the foundation of the frame distillery 
remains. Other buildings including an aging house, barns, and two 
other dwelling have been removed. 

(1) James W. Thomas and T.J.C. Williams, Historl of Allegany County (Philadelphia: 
L.R. Titsworth and Company) p.892-893 Vol. I 

(2) Allegany County Land Records, Liber 58, Folio 426 
(3) Interview with Mrs. Cora Mason, Cresaptown, 1-29-80 
(4) Thomas & Williams Vol. II P. 894 
(5) Ibid,p 893 
(6) Allegany County Assessments, District 7, 1876-1895, p.62 1896-1909 pp.114-115 
(7) Interview with Mrs. Cora Mason 
(8) Thomas and Williams Vol. II p. 893 
(9) Allegany County Assessments District 7, 1910-1917,p. 80 
(10) Thomas and Williams Vol. II p. 893 
{11) Ibid, pp. 893-894 
(12) Ibid 
(13) Ibid and p. 669 
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